
 
This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

From: Tanya Koshy
To:

Subject: Recommendation 85.1
Date: Friday, September 10, 2021 5:29:24 PM

 
Dear Acting Captain Altorfer:

Our office has completed its review of the materials related to Recommendation 85.1 that have been submitted to
us as part of the collaborative reform process.  After reviewing the package and information provided by the
Department, the California Department of Justice finds as follows:

Recommendation 85.1: The SFPD should continue supporting and overseeing this initiative and ensure the
Recruitment Unit continues to implement best practices for recruitment, training, and outreach to improve diversity
and cultural and linguistic responsiveness of the SFPD.

Response to 85.1: 

SFPD employs a number of mechanisms to oversee recruitment activities. First, recruitment activities must be
approved by a chain of command via a memo. The chain of command is as follows: Recruiter, Recruitment Sergeant,
Staff Services Lieutenant, Staff Services Captain, Administration Bureau Commander, Administration Bureau Deputy
Chief, and finally, the Chief of Police. However, not all requests require going through the full chain of command.

The City of San Francisco’s Department of Human Resources (DHR) also participates in a hiring committee with
SFPD, which provides further oversight. This committee meets quarterly and consists of DHR’s Public Safety Team,
SFPD’s Recruitment Unit, the Background Investigation Unit, the Staff Services Division, the Basic Academy, and the
Field Training Program. Each unit provides an update on their practices and future plans and ensure momentum and
accountability for various hiring and recruitment goals. The hiring committee’s policies and practices are described
in more detail in Unit Order 17-05 as well as in the email summaries finding SFPD in substantial compliance with
Recommendations 84.1 and 84.2.

Finally, the Recruitment Unit provides a Year End Review, which is codified in Unit Order 20-02 (“Recruitment Unit -
Year End Review Report,” issued August 1, 2020). The yearly review includes an assessment of recruitment events
and activities, applicant contacts, media advertising, and recruitment strategies.  SFPD has also outlined short term
and long term strategies for reaching recruitment and hiring goals in the yearly reports including: (1) expansion of
recruitment efforts into previously unexplored geographic territory; (2) exploring new cultural/social venues for
outreach; (3) advertising focusing on the contemporary workforce/generation's needs and interests by using
updated social-media platforms; and (4) rethinking benefits packages, work/life support
(scheduling/childcare/professional development). 

Beyond oversight, SFPD has also provided support for recruitment in a number of ways. First, SFPD has allocated
$250,000 of its annual budget to fund recruitment activities, programs, and expenses. Second, SFPD has detailed
more recruitment personnel and resources to recruitment events. SFPD notes that while requests for more support
for recruitment must be approved by the chain of command, these requests are rarely completely denied.

Third, on an annual basis, the Recruitment Unit sends at least two of its unit members to external trainings on police
recruitment. This policy is codified in Unit Order 17-07. After unit members attend a training, the unit reviews the
training materials to determine if SFPD has implemented any of the best practices presented at the training. SFPD
provided an extensive list of best practices that they gleaned from various trainings and how SFPD had already
implemented those practices and/or improved them since the trainings.  As one example, SFPD learned from a
training that agencies should not include the same information across all social media platforms. After learning of



this best practice, the Recruitment Unit adjusted their social media advertising.

Finally, SFPD has external support from DHR. SFPD notes that DHR has timely approved requests for resources (such
as canopies and folding tables for recruitment events) and DHR participates in a hiring committee with SFPD, as
described above.

To ensure that its recruitment activities are geared towards improving diversity and cultural and linguistic
responsiveness, SFPD has ensured that its full-time recruiters are diverse, both in terms of gender and race. Out of
its eight full-time recruiters, half are women and seven are people of color.  Additionally, three speak other
languages in addition to English (specifically, Cantonese, Portuguese, Spanish, Tagalog, Hawaiian, Tongan, and
Samoan). Of SFPD’s 90 part-time recruiters, 85% are people of color, 42% are women, and 38% speak other
languages in addition to English. The Recruitment Unit also recruits at a wide range of events to ensure a diverse
group of candidates. These events include SF’s Black History Celebration as well as the Chinese New Year, Pride, and
Adobo Festivals.

SFPD has analyzed data on its recruiting efforts and determined that in 2019 and 2020, about 45% of its recruiting
events were focused on diversity recruitment.

SFPD has seen its recruiting efforts pay off. From 2007-2014, the SFPD hired an average of 44% of its racially diverse
(i.e. non-White) recruits. From 2015-2019, the SFPD hired an average of 68% of its racially diverse recruits.

Based on all of the above, the California Department of Justice finds SFPD in substantial compliance with this
recommendation.

Please let us know if you have any questions or would like to discuss this further. 

Tanya
 
Tanya S. Koshy (she/her)
Deputy Attorney General
Civil Rights Enforcement Section
California Department of Justice
1515 Clay Street, Suite 2100
Oakland, CA  94612

 

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This communication with its contents may contain
confidential and/or legally privileged information. It is solely for the use of the intended
recipient(s). Unauthorized interception, review, use or disclosure is prohibited and may violate
applicable laws including the Electronic Communications Privacy Act. If you are not the
intended recipient, please contact the sender and destroy all copies of the communication.
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Finding #  85  The SFPD’s Recruitment Unit has implemented an active recruitment program focused on 
diversity and targeted recruiting throughout San Francisco but does not measure or 
validate the effectiveness of their outreach and events.  

Recommendation #  85.1  The SFPD should continue supporting and overseeing this initiative and ensure the 
Recruitment Unit continues to implement best practices for recruitment, training, and 
outreach to improve diversity and cultural and linguistic responsiveness of the SFPD. 

 

Recommendation  Status  Complete          PPartially Complete          In Prrogress 
Not Started       No Assessment  

Summary  

For compliance measure one, SFPD identifies the traditional chain of command as the primary oversight mechanism. 
Recruitment is very much partnered with the City’s DHR to address oversight and legality. The SFPD/DHR Hiring 
Committee Meeting also creates a forum for oversight of recruitment activities and meets quarterly to review the hiring 
process and hiring data. It also supplies evidence of annual review being required under a Unit Order.  
 
For compliance measure two, SFPD identifies requirements under Unit Order 17-07, that support review of best 
practices. SFPD sends two people annually for training, however this was limited in 2020 due to the pandemic and 
currently in 2021 due to budgetary issues. The department demonstrates actions taken in support of advancing best 
practices post-attendance at the conferences. However, it would benefit the SFPD to conduct this review of practices of 
major cities, ideally maintaining contact with those agencies that consistently demonstrate progressive practices. This 
will allow ongoing success during times of restricted travel – regardless of cause. The department also engaged external 
review, notably through a graduate student who did analysis of the department’s practices. 
 
For compliance measure three, SFPD identifies the internal analysis and includes the Diversity Strategic Plan – 
Application Process Mapping. However, it relies upon data that identifies the progression of diversity within the 
recruiting practices of the SFPD. It identifies a diverse recruiting team. It has data on events and the diverse communities 
targeted at these events. It then provides data on the diversity of the applicant pool as a result of the recruiting 
activities. As the diversity strategic plan moves forward, direct mapping to the goals will be expected, but the data 
overall shows a focus on appropriate diversity and the outcome is an increasingly diverse applicant pool between 2007 
and 2019.  
 
For compliance measure four, the SFPD uses a tracking sheet to determine the progression of candidates through the 
hiring process, which can take up to 12 months or more. As of February 2020, the SFPD is now provided with applicant 
information from City’s Department of Human Resources (DHR) to facilitate tracking of progression. Another measure is 
the use of the event summary by which the Recruiting Unit (RU) identifies the events attended. The RU does use surveys 
such as “how did you hear about us” to help identify how applicants come to the department. The use of surveys 
includes contacts, applicants and candidates so it seems to be a way to gather information and is intended to link event 
activity to application. The openness to feedback is the primary route for effectiveness which is centered on outreach. 
While these measures identify the activities, and the subsequent assessment of efficacy, the department should consider 
linking applicants to activities and events and to what degree the RU presence at the events or outreach efforts 
contributed to the application and to those candidates that are successful. In 2019, two-thirds of the applicants had 
contact with RU members, a sign of strong engagement. The survey question about how to improve recruitment 
engagement should be used to develop future strategy. 
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Compliance Measures Status/Measure Met  

1  Evidence of continued oversight and support of recruitment activities.   Yes      NNo       N/A  

2  Ongoing review of best practices for recruitment, training and outreach, and 
continuous improvement loop established. 

 Yes     No     N/A 

3  Evidence that recruitment activities support diversity, cultural and linguistic 
goals. 

 Yes     No     N/A 

4  Establish measures for determining effectiveness of recruitment activities.   Yes     NNo      N/A  

 

Administrative Issues  

Please ensure the removal of any PII from the attachments before posting on the SFPD website. 

 

Compliance IIssues 

 

 










